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VISION

To deliver innovation and quality to our customers by following a

progressive and on time approach and further the cause of a
sustainable future by promoting an eco friendly approach in all our
operations.

MISSION

To be a foremost Company receptive to the needs of

our customers, acknowledge for consistently
providing fine quality products and services by
understanding the customer’s behaviour and
preparing fully to meet the challenges of global
market and to maximize profit by making best
efforts in production planning, quality of products and

making strategies.
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NOT F 37TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
will be held at 1041/5, Business Centre Ath Floor Mumtaz Hassan Road Near “SBP” Karachi on Tuesday October 28, 2025
al 10:15 a.n. Lo Lransacl Lhe (ollowing business:-

The Company has alsoc arranged the participation of shareheoclders through video facility. The detailed procedure is
mentioned |later in the naotes. Fallowing businesses will be transacted during the meeting:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

1. To conflirrm Minules ol Lthe Lasl Exlra Ordinary General Meeling held on Monday August 11, 2025.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025,
together with the reports of the directors and auditors.

3. To appoint auditors for the ensuing year and fix their remuneration.

4. Any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

Karachi: MUHAMMAD NADEEM
September 30, 2025 Company Secretary
Notes:

1. Online Participation in the Annual General Meeting

In order to facilitate and for the safety and well-being of the shareholders, the Company in addition to convening a
physical meeting, has also arranged the attendance of the share heolders virtually through video link facility. The
shareholders who are interesled in altending Lthe AGM proceedings online may send Lhe below informaltlion along
with the wvalid copy of both sides of CNIC with the subject “Registration for ldeal Spinning Mills Limited AGM” at
nadeem@idealsm.com for their appointed proxy’s verification. Such information should be sent from their duly
registered valid email ID for the registration purposes latest by October 24, 2025.

Shareholder’s Name Folio / CDC No. No. of shares held CNIC Na. Cell No. Registered Email ID

A detailed procedure shall be communicated through the email directly to the shareholders who have provided their
valid email IDs and the same shall be placed at the Company’s website: https://www.idealsm.com in the investor
relations section.
The shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions for the agenda items of the AGM at the email address
nadeem@idealsm.cam.
Members are therefore, encouraged to attend the AGM through video link or by consolidating their attendance
through proxies.

2. Closure of Share Transfer Books
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 18, 2025 to October 28, 2025 (both days
inclusive). No transfer will be accepted for registration during this period. Transfers received at Share Registrar Office
M/s F.D Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd, 1/th Floor Saima Irade lower—A, I.I. Chundrigar Road Karachi 74000 at the close of
business on October 17, 2025, will be treated in time to attend and vote at the meeting.

3. For Attending the Meeting
In case of individuals, the account helders or sub-account holders and/or the persons whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate their identity by
showing original Computerized MNational Identity Cards (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.
In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with the specimen signature of the
naominee shall be produced (if it has not been provided earlier) at the time of attending the meeting.

4. Proxy
A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend, speak and vote
in his place at the meeting. Instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered ottfice of the Company
at least forty-eight hours hefaore the time of the meeting.
To tacilitate identification for the right to attend the Annual General Meeting, the shareholder whose holdings are on
the Central Depository Company (CDC) or his Proxy should authenticate his identity by showing his original CNIC or
original passport at the time of attending the meeting, along with the Participant's Identity Number and Shareholder's
account number allocated by the Central Depository Company.
In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

5. Natice to Shareholders who have not provided their CNIC
The Individual Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid Caomputerized National ldentity Card
(CNIC) to the Company/Share Registrar, are once again reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to Company’s
Share Registrar, M/s F.D Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd, In case of non-receipt of the copy of a valid CNIC, the Company

would be constrained under section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, to withhold dividend (if any) of such
shareholders.

6. Deposit of Physical Shares in CDC Account.
As per Section 72 of the Campanies Act, 2017, every existing listed company is required to replace its physical
shares with book-entry form. Therefore, the shareholders having physical shares requested to convert the shares
into book entry.

7. Placement of Financial Statements on Website
Pursuant to the notification of the SFCP (SRO 634(1)/2014) dated: 10th luly 2014 the financial Statements of the
Company have been placed on Company’s website at www.idealsm.com

8. Unclaimed Dividends And Share Certificates:

Shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per the record, there are some unclaimed/ uncollected
/unpaid dividends and shares. Shareholders who could not collect their dividends/shares are advised to contact
our Share Registrar M/s. FD Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, L.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi
during working hours. Ph: 0092-21-32271905 Email: fdregistrar@yahoo.com to collect/enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or shares, if any.

9. Prohibition of Distribution of Gifts

Considering 5.R.0.452(1)2025 DATED 177" March 2025, No gifts will be distributed to the shareholders of the
Company at the General Meeting being prohibited under Section 185 of Act, 2017.
10. Change of Address

The Sharcheolders are requested to intimate any changes in their addressces to the Sharce Rcgistrar, M/s F.D Rcgistrar
Services (Pwvt) Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The Board has diligently prepared and approved the Directors’ Report, ensuring its
inclusion with the Company’s quarterly and annual financial statements. This report has
been developed in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

In line with its responsibilities, the Board has overseen the recruitment, evaluation, and
compensation of key executives, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit. The Board has
also ensured that its members receive timely and adequate information, keeping them
well-informed of developments between meetings.

The Board has exercised its authority strictly within the powers prescribed by relevant
laws and regulations, demonstrating a consistent commitment to compliance in all
decisions and actions. Essential agendas and supporting documents were circulated in
advance of Board and Committee meetings to facilitate thorough review and deliberation.
Non-executive and independent directors continued to play an equal and integral role in
all significant Board decisions.

Despite various challenges, the Company adopted effective cost management
strategies, leading to a reduction in distribution, administrative, and financial expenses.
As a result, the loss before tax decreased to Rs. 274.752 million, compared to Rs.
356.929 million in the corresponding period of the previous year. However, after
incorporating the deferred tax adjustment, the Company reported an after-tax loss of Rs.
423.559 million, as against a loss of Rs. 322.240 million in the same period last year.

Recognizing the importance of addressing these challenges, the Company has
proactively undertaken measures to mitigate their impact. The management team
continues to closely monitor the situation and evaluate multiple strategies aimed at
improving financial performance. We remain firmly committed to achieving sustainable
growth and creating long-term value for our stakeholders. With the right measures in
place, we are confident in our ability to successfully navigate these challenges and
emerge stronger in the future.

Muhammad Saeed
Chairman

Faisalabad
September 30, 2025

—i—
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The directors of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited feel pleasure to present 37" Annual Report
accompanied by the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the year ended June 30,
2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW:

We are delighted to present our 2025 business review,

Global economic volatility, coupled with escalating costs of raw materials and labor, has
significantly undermined the competitiveness of Pakistan's textile industry. The situation is
further aggravated by recurring energy shortages and power outages, which continue to
disrupt production. Adding to these difficulties is the intense competition from regional rivals
such as Bangladesh, India, and Vietnam, who are rapidly expanding their textile sectors
with attractive pricing and superior product quality. Collectively, these factors pose a
serious threat to Pakistan's market share in the global textile arena.

To secure the IMF bailout, the government was required to increase electricity and fuel
tariffs, which in turn constrained overall economic activity. As a result, our management
encountered multiple challenges, including escalating raw material and energy prices, a
mandated rise in minimum wages, and continued strain on yarn prices due to the import of
cheaper yarn from competing countries.

Despite the challenges highlighted above, the Company implemented effective cost
management measures, resulting in reductions in distribution, administrative, and financial
expenses. Consequently, the loss before tax declined to Rs. 274.752 million, as compared
to Rs. 356.929 million in the corresponding period of the previous year. However, after
accounting for the deferred tax adjustment, the Company posted an after-tax loss of Rs.
423559 million, against a loss of Rs. 322.240 million in the same period last year.

In the face of these challenges, we remain fully committed to our shareholders. We are
actively addressing these issues through strategic measures aimed at optimizing

operations and enhancing cost efficiency. Our core objective remains the creation of long-
term walue for all stakeholders. The Company's operational results are summarized as

| follows:
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

30.06,2025 30.06.2024
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 3,563,528 5,559,463
COST OF SALES (3,501,445) (5.351,493)
GROSS PROFIT 82,083 207,970
DISTRIBUTION COST (78,910) (112,587)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (240,219) (302,575)
OTHER EXPENSES (5.770) (5,935)
OTHER INCOME 96,175 35,757
FINANCE COST (128,111) (179,559)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND LEVY (274,752) (356,929)
LEVY (44,750) (69.463)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (319.502) (426.392)
TAXATION (104,057) 104,152
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (423.559) 322,240
LOSS PER SHARE-BASIC AND DILUTED (RUPEES) (42.70) (32.48)

| —
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ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:

Pakistan's currency recently reached of Rs. 281.85 against the US dollar. The nsing costof
imports and raw matenals has crested signficantchallenges, leading to shortages of key
inputs.

Looking shesad, the industry 1s expected to remain under pressure, with subdued demand n
both domestic and export markets, slongside rising energy costs. Despie these
headwinds, the Company remains resiient, pursuing innovstive stretegies to navigste the
challienges whilke maintaining ts strong commtment to quaity and sustainabiity.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES:

Risk assessment is 8 continuous and integral process designed to dentfy uncertainties
that may threstenthe achievement of the Company's objectves. If not addressed in a
timety manner, suchnsks could result in significant losses. These uncertainties may anse
from both intemal and externalfactors. The key categones of nsks that could potentially
impact the Company’'s operations are outiined below:

« Strategic Risks: These involve uncertaintes and untapped opportunties related to
the Company's strategic objectives. Strategic nsks are 8 primary concem for the
Board of Directors as they affect the overall business rather than specific units.

+ CommercialRisks: Theserelateto potential losses stemming from interactions wih
trading partners orthe dynamics of the markets in which the Company operates.

« Operational Risks: These anse from intemal factors such as procedursl
inefficiencies, personnel challenges, or system failures.

« Financial Risks: This broad category covers nsks associated with financing,
liquidity, proftabilty, and credit exposure.

The Company maintains continuous vigilance and adopts proactve mitigation measures to
minimize these nsks, thereby safeguarding stakeholder interests and ensuring the
successful achievement of ts objectives.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT:

The Company is committed to upholding the highest standards of Health, Safety, and
Environment (HSE) to ensure sustainable performance. In line with this commitment,
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) have been promptly implemented to address
environmental challenges, with a parbcular focus on combating climate change byreducing
greenhouse gas emissions, notably carbon dixade (CO:) sand methane. Stnct adherence fo
these SOPs reflects the Company's dedication to HSE excellence and long-term
sustainabiity.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company acknowledges its corporate social responsibilty (CSR) 1o the community and
remains commauted 10 supporting it.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Board of Directors acknowledges its cntical responsibilty in overseeingthe Company's
intermal control system and ensures its ongoing effectveness through robust
implementation and regular montonng.

The Company has established a comprehensive intemal control framework that
encompasses transparent structures, clearty defined authorty Iimits, and well-assigned
responsibilties, all supported by detailed policies and procedures. This framework is
designedto drive operational efficiency, safeguard Company assets, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and deliver reliable financial reporting.

DIVIDEND POLICY
In accordance with regulstory requirements, the Board has adopted a transparent Drvidend

| —
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Policy. balancingthe need for shareholder retums with reinvestment for long-term growth.
For the year under review. no dividend has been recommended due to losses.

Board Evaluation

In compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations.
2019, the Board conducted its annual performance evaluation through a structured self-
assessment process. The results confirmed that the Board has been effective in
discharging its responsibilities, while also highlighting areas for further improvement in
long-term strategy and govemance.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The company has diligently adhered to all stipulations outlined in the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance)Regulations, 2019. A comprehensive statement confirming this compliance
is attached herewith in this annual report.

FUTURE OUTL OOK:

The Company anticipates a positive outlook for its financial performance in the coming
year, supported by substantial investments in the modemization and replacement of
machinery. These strategic initiatives are expected to deliver long-term benefits and
strengthen operational efficiency. In addition, the Company i1s focused on enhancing its
self-energy generation capabilities to further reduce production costs.

We remain confident that continued government support for the textile sector will reinforce
the growth potential of exporting industries. thereby contributing to both the Company’s
progress and the country’s economic development.

BOARD COMPOSITION, REMUNERATION AND MEETINGS:

In line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Company encourages
representation of independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity onits Board.

The Board's compaosition and detail of the directors and meetings attended is as under:

Composition of the Board:

Category Male Female Total
Executive Director 2 - 2
Non-Executive Director 3 1 4
Independent Director 2 - 2
Total 7 1 8
Detail of the directors and meetings attended:
Name of Directors Designation Attendance
Mr. Muhammad Saeed Chairman (Non-Executive Director) 4
Mr. Amjad Saeed Chief Executive Officer 4
Mr. Omer Saeed Executive Director 4
Mrs. Rubina Amjad (Female) Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Khizer Saeed Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Independent Director 4
Mr. Rizwan-ul-Hassan Independent Director 4
1

—l—
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Our company maintains a well-defined policy and transparent procedures forthe remuneration of its
Directors, aligningwith the Companies Act, 2017, and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

For comprehensive details on the remuneration, including Director Fees for attending board
meetings, and compensation forthe Chief Executive Officer, please referto Note 34 in the financial
statements.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW
The Directors hereby affirm the Chairman's review report on the company's performance.
OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS:

All pending payments are of a routine and negligible nature.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS FUNDS:

The Company maintains an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees. as indicated in the
financial statements.

AUDITOR §:

The current auditors, M/S RIAZ AHMAD 8 CO. Chartered Accountants, who are eligible, have

expressed their willingness for re-appointment for the year 2025-2026. in line with the
recommendation of the audit committee.

PATERN OF SHAREHOLDING:
The pattern of shareholding as of June 30, 2025, is included in the annex.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All dealings with related parties are conductedon an arm's length basis withinthe normal course of
business and are infull conformity with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2017. Pricing
is establishedin accordance with the comparable uncontrolled price method, andthe Company isin
strict compliance with the best practices in transfer pricing as stipulated in the listing regulations of
the Pakistan Stock Exchanges (PSX).

BOARD COMMITTEES:

The Board in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance has established following
committees and their composition is as under:

A. Audit Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Saeed Member

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

B. Human Resource And Remuneration Committee:

Name Designation

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member
1
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C. Nomination Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Omer Saeed Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

D. Risk Management Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Chairman
Mr. Omer Saeed Member

Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

E. Sustainability Committee:

Name Designation

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Board acknowledges the pivotal role that well-structured corporate governance practices play
in fostering accountability. We are steadfast in our commitment to upholding elevated corporate
governance standards to preserve and enhance stakeholder value. The Board has demonstrated
diligence and has made significant contributions to steer the Company in its strategic endeavors.
Qur Company maintains a robust relationship with the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan andthe Pakistan Stock Exchange. ensuringunwavering compliance with the principles of
Good Corporate Governance in both word and deed. A comprehensive statement affirming our
adherence to the best practices of Corporate Governance is provided in the annex.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAME WORK:

In accordance with the regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange and as mandated by the
Companies Act, 2017, we are pleased to affirm the following:

1. The financial statements, meticulously prepared by our management, accurately reflect the
Company's financial position, operating results, cash flows, and changes in equity.

2. Properly maintained books of accounts are in place for the Company.

3. We have consistently applied appropriate accounting policies, and our accounting estimates
are grounded in reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. The preparation of financial statements adheres to the International Financial Reporting
Standards. as relevantin Pakistan. Ourinternal control system is well-structured, effectively
implemented, and continually monitored.

5. There is no uncertainty regarding the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

6. We have maintained alignment with the best practices of corporate governance, as outlined
in the listing regulations, with no significant deviations.

7. Asummarized formof key operational andfinancial data fromthe pastsix years is provided
inthe annex.

| ——
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD:

Appropriations:

In view of the financial performance duringthe year. which resulted in a loss. the Board of
Directors has considered it inadvisable to recommend a cash dividend for approval at the
Annual General Meeting. The Board has instead resclvedto prontize the prudent allocation
of resources towards addressing current challenges. strengtheningthe Company's financial
position, and ensunng long-term sustainability.

Other events:

Subsequent to the reporting penod. significant developments have taken place. The
management, in view of the continued heavy losses. sought shareholders’ approval
through an Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on August 11, 2025 for the
closure of the Company's spinning operations and the sale of its production machinery.
The Company is closely assessingthe potential implications of this measure and will take
appropnate actions to mitigate its impact.

A detailed evaluation and disclosure of these events. in line with regulatory requirements.
will be presented in the upcoming report to ensure full transparency.

The Company remains firmly committed to delivering sustainable growth and creating long-
term value for its stakeholders. With the right strategies and measures in place, we are
confident in our ability to navigate these challenges and emerge stronger.

ACKNOWILEDGEMENT:

The Board places onrecordits appreciation for loyalty and devotion to work, by staff and workers
forthe company. The relationship between management and workers remained very cordial and we
hope that these will further improve in the years to come.

The Board extends its gratitude forthe unwavering loyalty and dedication displayed by our staff and
workers. The relationship between the management and our workforce has been exceptionally
harmonious, and we anticipate further enhancements in the years ahead.

On Behalf of the Board

it i

Amjad Saeed Omer Saeed
Chief Executive Officer Director

September 30, 2025
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Statement of Compliance

With Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: -
1. The total number of directors is eight as per the following:

a. Male: Seven
b. Female: One

2. The composition of the board is as follows:

Category Name
a. Independent directors Mr. Muhammad Azhar
Mr. Rizwan-Ul- Hassan
b. Non-executive directors Mr. Muhammad Saeed

Mr. Ahsan Saeed
Mr. Khizer Saeed

c. Executive directors Mr. Amjad Saeed
Mr. Omer Saeed
d. Female director Mrs. Rubina Amjad

Board of Directors is of the view that considering the volume of business, independent
directors should not be more than two as required by these regulations. Hence, the
fraction of independent directors has not been rounded up.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy anc
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters
have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act 2017 “the Act” and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by
a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board has already arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

Name Category

Mr. Omer Saeed Executive Director

Mrs. Rubina Amjad Non-Executive Director
1
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Mr. Ahsan Saeed Non-Executive Director
Mr. Khizer Saeed Non-Executive Director

Moreover, our following two directors meet the exemption criteria of minimum 14 years

of education and 15 years of experience on the boards of listed companies, hence are
exempt from Directors’ Training Program:

Mr. Muhammad Saeed Non-Executive Director
Mr. Amjad Saeed Executive Director

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and
head of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. -

a. Audit Committee

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman

Mr. Muhammad Saeed Member

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
b. HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member

c. Nomination Committee

Mr. Omer Saeed Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

d. Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Chairman
Mr. Omer Saeed Member
Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

e. Sustainability Committee

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented
and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the aforesaid committees during the financial year ended
June 30, 2025, were as per following:

Audit Committee: Quarterly

HR and Remuneration Committee: Annually

Nomination Committee: Annually

Risk Management Committee: Annually

Sustainability Committee : Annually

© 2o 0 T O
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who is considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, head of internal audit,
company secretary or director of the company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any
other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with; and

Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8,
27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

Sr.

Regulation

Requirement Number

Explanation of Non-Compliance

Directors’ Training
It is encouraged that by 30 June
2022, all directors on the Board have

acquired the prescribed certification
under any director training program
offered by institutions, local or foreign,
that meet the criteria specified by the
Commission and approved by it.

The Independent director Mr. Muhammad
Azhar and Mr. Rizwan-ul-Hassan did not
attend the director’s training program due
to tight schedule. However, company is
arranging directors’ training program as
early as possible.

19(1)

Female Executive’s Training
Companies are encouraged to
arrange training for at least one
2 female executive every year under
the Directors’ Training Program from
year July 2020.

The Company will arrange directors’
training program for its female executive
in next financial year.

19(3)(1)

Training of Head of Department

At least one head of department
3 every year is required to be trained
under the Director’s Training Program
from July 2022.

The Company will organize the training of
its one head of department each year
from next financial year.

19(3)(ii)

77 &a//

Signatures Signatures
MUHAMMAD SAEED OMER SAEED
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
30 September 2025
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KLY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA

FORLAST SIX YEARS
PARTICULARS 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
(Rupees in Millions)
FINANCIAL POSITION
Paid up capital 929.200 99.200 99.200 99.200 99.200 99.200
Fixed assels w cosl / revidued amount 3,007.770 3,109,927 2,939,739 2871105 2,312.58 1,997.710
lixed assets (l.ease) at cost - -
Accumulated depreciation 1,447.480 1,417.373 1,285.757 1,140.293 1,039.79 946.906
Current assets 976.991 1,469.253 1,390.975 1,606.192 1,492.735 1,055.24
Current liabilitics 2,354,703 2,587.709 2,479.081 1,657.004 1,474.098 1,102,115
INCOME
Sales 3,583.528 5,559.463 6,359,842 0,095,257 4,793.15 3,923,725
Other income 96.175 35.757 52.33Y 29721 7.081 11.384%
Pre levy & tax (loss)/ Profit (274.752) (356.929) (585.098) 515257 296.777 16.668
Levy (44.750) (69.463) (78.152)
Taxation - - - (192.224) (94.473) (39.721)
T'axati on (104.057) 104.152 100180
STATISTICS AND RATIOS
Prelevy & tax (loss)/Profit to sales 4 (7.607) (h.420) (8.53) 845 6.19 374
Prelevy & tax (loss) /Profit to capital % (276.967) (359.810) (589.82) 519.41 299,17 147.85
Current ratio 1:0.41 1:0.57 1:0.76 1:.0.98 1:1.01 1:0.96
Paid up value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Loss / Earnings aftcr levy & tax per share (Rs.) (42.70) (32.48) (55.85) 32.56 2039 10.78
Cash dividend % - - - 20 18 13
Break up value per share (Rts.) 18.460 61.140 £1.04 137.06 10342 69.38
1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2025 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2025.

/.4' At cp.
o

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Faisalabad
Date: 30 September, 2025.
UDIN: CR202510184KGzNB9axS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2025 and of the loss, other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Inventories as at 30 June 2025
amounting to Rupees 380.320
million, break up of which is as
follows:

- Stores, spare parts and
loose tools of Rupees
97.109 million

- Stock-in-trade of Rupees
283.211 million

Inventories are stated at lower of
cost and net realizable value.

We identified existence and
valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to their size,
representing 14.87% of the total
assets of the Company as at 30
June 2025, and the judgment
involved in valuation.

For  further  information
inventories, refer to the following:

on

- Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Inventories (Note 2.7 to
the financial statements).

- Stores, spare parts and
loose tools (Note 15) and
Stock-in-trade (Note 16)
to the financial
statements.

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our
No. audit
1. | Inventory existence and

valuation

Our procedures over existence and valuation
of inventories included, but were not limited

to:

To test the quantity of inventories at all
locations, we assessed the
corresponding inventory observation
instructions and  participated in
inventory counts on sites. Based on
samples, we performed test counts and
compared the quantities counted by us
with the results of the counts of the
management.

For a sample of inventory items, re-
performed the weighted average cost
calculation and compared the weighted
average cost appearing on valuation
sheets.

On a sample basis, we tested the net
realizable value of inventory items to
recent selling prices and re-performed
the calculation of the inventory write
down, if any.

In the context of our testing of the
calculation, we analyzed individual cost
components and traced them back to

the corresponding underlying
documents.
We also made inquiries from

management, including those outside
of the finance function, and considered
the results of our testing above to
determine whether any specific write
downs were required.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in respect of the
accounting policies and related notes to
the financial statements.
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Sr.

No.

Key audit matters

How the matters were addressed in our
audit

Revenue recognition

The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 3,583.528 million
for the year ended 30 June 2025.

We identified recognition of revenue
as a key audit matter because

revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an

inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to the
following:

- Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Revenue from contracts
with  customers (Note
2.19 to the financial
statements).

- Revenue from contracts
with customers (Note 23
to the financial
statements).

to:

Our procedures included, but were not limited

We obtained an understanding of the

process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating

effectiveness of key internal controls
over recording of revenue.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year-
end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and other
relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

We assessed whether the accounting
policies for revenue recognition
complies with the requirements of IFRS
15 ‘'Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’.

We also considered the appropriateness
of disclosures in the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
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b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Liagat
Ali Panwar.

Lo Aind'ss 2.
RIA%T-IMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Faisalabad

Date: 30 September, 2025.
UDIN: AR202510184pye6H7uP0




Annual report 2024-25

IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

IdealGroup

£8/'08Z'E 0£0'855°C
£52'651' 166'9£6
29€'96 FELTH
905'51€ 6#5'00E
a62'se 5/8'2h
656 $I1'T
L4921 zBL'sT
pES'/2Z 129281
8££'589 112'e82
£09'201 601'26
0£5'718'T 6£0'785'T
0Z1'%0T -
(A% 616'8
$98 -
FERP0L'T 0912451
(aNVSNOHL NI 533dNY)
+ToT STOZ

A301440 TVIONVNIL 43IHD dJoLo3dIa
ANHVZ dIHSVM Q¥INNVHNIN a33avs ¥3no

T4

61

8T

£1

at

51

129

£l

[4s

1T

310N

S1355V 1V101 £82'08C°E 0£0'855°C
867'b/9'E 0S6'b4E'T
SROUE|EC| YLIE( pUE YseD
60/"/88E £04'bSE'T
S3|(RARD31 BLRO THS'16 -
665T 965'¢
32U - An3| pug Xe} SWodL| aueApy £18°019'1 85b88/'1
895'87 6/T'ET
sjuawieda.d pue syisodsp uue) Joys og1'psy DF'0SS
SOUBAPE pLE SUB0T
k5’98 £¥e'oz
s1gap apes ) _ 665'9T 7 7 0T 7
nan’ns -
apen-ulI-pols
5|00] 3500] pue sped aleds ‘sau0g
S13SSY INJHUND 525’909 021'£81
(1ee’sLe) (9g£'10£)
9bR'ERS 9pB'ErS
555'09€ $55°09¢
162'€81 167°£81
D08'TFE 008"
002’66 002’66
1955E XE} auwaoul paliajag
sualiAedsad pue spsodep wiey buo) pon’00e 000002

sjpsse a|qIBuejul

juswdinba pue jued ‘Apadaiyg
1355V INJYUNI-NON

S13S5V
(GNVSNOHL NI S33dNy)
¥ZOT 5T0T

SZOT ANNC OF LV SY NOILISOd TVIONVYNI 40 INJW3L1V1S

A301440 IAILNDIAXT 43IHD
a3aavs avpav

SUBLWIBIE)S [EPURLY 353l o Jed [elfaul Le Wwio) S30U paxauLe au)

SILITIIAVIT ANV ALINDI TV 101
ot SINIWLTWWOD ANV SIIINIONIINOD
ST TAVITIVIOL

[ Bupueuy wuey Buol Jo uontod Jusuny
PUSPIAIp paliguf

6 sBuimoLIog UL Hoys
] dn-ylew pannay
£ sa|geded Jayjo pue spet|
SATITIEYIT INIJHUND

9 Ainelb usweanal Jeg
g Buioueuy wiiey buoy
SIATITIIGVIT INTHUNI-NON

S3LITIavIl
Aunba |ejo1

SS0| paie|nLUNIdy

+ pug| plougedy Jo uonenfeaad uo snjding
sUeo| siap|oyeleys Jo uondod Aynb3
saniasal jepde)

€ sueo| siosucdg
yseo uj pied A|nj yoea QT seadny Jo

saleys Aleuipio (000 0Z6 6 +20Z) 000 0Z6 6

|eudeo ateys dn pred pue paquasqns ‘pansst

poes T seadny Jo
saleys Aleuipio (000 000 0Z :+20Z) 000 000 0

|eudeo aieys pazuoyiny
SIAYIASIY ANV TV IIdVI JHVYHS
SALITIIEVI] ANV ALINd3

310N

34




IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED Annual report 2024-25 @

IdealGroup

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NOTE 2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 23 3,583,528 5,559,463
COST OF SALES 24 (3,501,445) (5,351,493)
GROSS PROFIT 82,083 207,970
DISTRIBUTION COST 25 (78,910) (112,587)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 26 (240,219) (302,575)
OTHER EXPENSES 27 (5,770) (5,935)
OTHER INCOME 28 96,175 35,757
FINANCE COST 29 (128,111) (179,559)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND LEVY (274,752) (356,929)
LEVY 30 (44,750) (69,463)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (319,502) (426,392)
TAXATION 31 (104,057) 104,152
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (423,559) (322,240)
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 32 (42.70) (32.48)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AGJAD AEED OMER SAEED MUHAMMAD KASHIF ZAHUR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NOTE 2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

LOSS AFTER TAXATION (423,559) (322,240)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or |oss:

Remeasurements of staff retirement gratuity 6.3 217 110

Deferred income tax related to remeasurements 14.1.1 (63) (32)
154 78

Surplus on revaluation of freehold land - 124,698
154 124,776

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -

Other comprehensive income for the year -
net of deferred income tax 154 124,776

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (423,405) (197,464)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AGJAD AEED OMER SAEED MUHAMMAD KASHIF ZAHUR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NOTE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 33

Finance cost paid

Income tax and levy paid

Staff retirement gratuity paid 6
Net decrease in long term loans

Net increase in long term deposits and prepayments

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term financing
Dividend paid
Acquisition of short term borrowings - net

Net cash from financing activities

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Net foreign exchange difference on translating cash
and bank balances

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR 22

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

)

OMER SAEED
DIRECTOR

Ai;JAD AEED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2025

IdealGroup

2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

146,832 270,763
(135,043)  (189,092)
(64,335) (61,300)
(12,607) (78,205)
- 47
(6,797) (215)
(71,950) (58,002)
(32,825) (61,804)
42,500 8,892
9,675 (52,912)
(105,000) (35,000)
(3) (202)
112,645 171,490
7,642 136,288
(54,633) 25,374
96,362 70,988
(5) -
41,724 96,362

MUHAMMAD KASHIF ZAHUR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on 08 June 1989 under the
Companies QOrdinance, 1984 (Now Companies Act, 2017) and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on 30 September 1991.
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of varn, cloth and hosiery products. The Company's registered
office is situated at Room No. 404-405, 4th Floor, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi.

Geographical location and addresses of all business units of the Company, except for the registered office given above are as

follows:

Offices and manufacturing units Address

Head Office 1088, Jail Road, Faisalabad

Spinning and Weaving Units 32-KM Sheikhupura Road, Tehsil Jaranwala, District Faisalabad

Socks Unit 5-KM Cantt. Road, Shorkot City

Regional Office 506-D, 5th Floor, City Tower, 6-K, Main Boulevard, Gulberg-II, Lahore
2, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b) Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as atherwise stated in the respective
accounting palicies.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reporting standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates are recognised in
the periods in which the estimates are revised and in any future period affected. The areas where various assumptions and
estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting
policies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairment

The estimate for revalued amount of freehold land is based on valuation performed by external professional valuer. Further, the
Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Estimates with respect to residual values and
useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the management of the Company. Any change in
the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment along
with intangible assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment.

Recovery of deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Company considers it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses,
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Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations,
technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized
provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an asset.

Inventories

Inventory write-down is based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each reporting date on inventories for excess
inventories, obsolescence and decline in net realizable value and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for such
dedines.

Income tax and levy

In making the estimates for income tax and levy currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the
current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and daims against the Company. Based on the judgment and the advice
of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disdosure or provision is made. The actual outcome of these
litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the statement of financial position
date.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifetime
expected credit loss, based on the Company's experience of actual credit loss in past years.

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key perfarmance abligation of the Company is
considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains
control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Staff retirement gratuity

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in Note 6.4 to the financial statements for determination of present

value of staff retirement gratuity. Any change in these assumptions in future years might affect the current and remeasurement
gains and losses in those years.

d) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and are relevant to
the Company

Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 July 2024:

+ Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' — Classification of liabilites as current or non-current;
* Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases’ — Lease liability in a sale and leaseback transaction;
* Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants; and

« Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures” — Supplier finance
arrangements.

The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior
period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

e) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to
the Company

There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2024 but
are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore
not detailed in these financial statements.
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f) Standard, amendments and improvements to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
but relevant to the Company

Following standard, amendments and improvements to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Company's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2025 or later periods:

Classification and Measurements of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' and IFRS 9
'Financial Instruments') effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2026. These amendments address matters
identified during the past - implementation review of the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9.

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'). The amendments contain
guidance to spedfy when a currency is exchangeable and how to determine the exchange rate when it is not. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on ar after 01 January 2025.

IFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disdosure in Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2027)
with a focus on updates to the statement of profit or loss. The objective of IFRS 18 is to set out requirements for the presentation
and disclosure of information in general purpose financial statements to help ensure they provide relevant information that
faithfully represents an entity’s assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. The key concepts introduced in IFRS 18 relate to:
the structure of the statement of profit or loss; reguired disdosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss
performance measures that are reported outside an entity's finandal statements (that is, management-defined performance
measures); and enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial statements and notes
in general. IFRS 18 will replace IAS 1; many of the other existing principles in IAS 1 are retained, with limited changes. IFRS 18
will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the finandal statements, but it might change what an entity reports as
its ‘operating profit or loss’.

IFRS S1'General Reguirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information”. IFRS S1 sets out overall
requirements for sustainability-related financial disclosures with the abjective to require an entity to disclose information about its
sustainability-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reports in making
decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.

IFRS S2 ‘Climate-related Disclosures’. IFRS 52 sets out the requirements for identifying, measuring and disclasing infarmation
about climate-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reparts in making
decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.

As per the current scenario, the Company will fall in Phase-III of the criteria as per the arder from Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated 31 December 2024. Therefore the effective date of these two sustainability standards for the
Company is for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2027.

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has published 'Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards —
Volume 11'. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2026. It contains
amendments to following standards relevant to the Company, as result of the IASB's annual improvements project:

* IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;
* IFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and
* JAS 7 Statement of Cash flows.

The above standard, amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements.

ag) Standards, amendments and improvements to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective and not considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards, amendments and improvements to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 July 2025 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

2,2 Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any identified impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss, while capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred
during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to aperating fixed
assets as and when these are available for use. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining
to the construction / erection period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working
condition.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold land are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in
the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous
increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable
to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss.
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Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of the revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the year in which
these are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method
so as to write off the cost / deprediable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 11.1. The
Company charges the depreciation on additions from the month when the asset is available for use and on deletions upto the
month preceding the month of disposal. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management at each
financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recoghnition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is de-recognized.

2.3 Intangible assets

Computer softwares acquired by the Company are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss.
The amortization is made applying the straight line method at the rates stated in Note 12 to these financial statements.

2.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or changes in drcumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if
impairment losses had not been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

2.5 Share capital

Ordinary shares are dlassified as equity and recognized at their face value. Discount or premium on issuance of shares is
separately reported in statement of changes in equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issuance of shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax.

2.6 Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term financing are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective
gualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term financing. All ather interest, mark-up and other charges are
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

2.7 Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as
follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered obsolete are
carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice amount plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade
Cost of raw materials, wark-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

(i) For raw materials: Weighted average cost.

(ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including
a portion of production averheads.

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stock is valued at net
realizable value,

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make a sale.
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2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term
highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in values.

2.9 Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates defined benefit plan - unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan are determined
through actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making assumptions about discount
rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these benefits, such estimates are subject to
certain uncertainties. Remeasurements changes which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which these arise.

2.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

2.11 Taxation and levy
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation
of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the
year, if enacted. Final taxes levied under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and any excess over the amount designated as
pravision far current tax are charged as levy in statement of profit or loss. The charge for current tax and levy also indudes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax and levy made in previous years arising from assessments framed
during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the correspanding tax bases used in the computation of the
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temparary differences and deferred tax assets to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based an tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.12  Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the pericd
in which it is declared.

2.13  Financial instruments
i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments
Financial assets
a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
« those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, gains and losses will be recorded in profit or loss. For investments in debt

instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.
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b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a finandial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Finandal assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

a) Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these finandal assets is induded in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in
other income / (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.

b) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) are
measured at FYTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequenty measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or loss
and presented net within other income { (other expenses) in the period in which it arises.

Financial liabilities

Finandial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost or at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FYTPL). A finandal
liability is dassified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
de-recognition is also included in profit or loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recagnizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortized cost, The
Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-
menth ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default accurring over the expected life of the finandal instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

When determining whether the credit risk of a finandal asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reascnable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significanty if it is more than past due for a
reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in arder
to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the finandial asset have occurred.
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Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired indudes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; or
- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other finandal reorganization.

iii) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
a) Financial assets
The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does

not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such de-recognized financial assets that is created or retained by the
Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial liahility (or a part of finandial liability) from its statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

iv) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and finandial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legal
enfaorceable right to offset and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

2.14  Borrowings
Financing and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of attributable transaction costs incurred and are subsequently

stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of the barrowings using the effective interest method.

2,15 Government grants

Grants from the Government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that these are intended to compensate.

2.16 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amartized cost using the effective interest method,
less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.,
2,17 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are recognized initially at fair value and are subseguently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

2,18 Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currencies are franslated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setdement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
charged or credited to statement of profit or loss.

2.19 Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from contracts with customers

—

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is

generally at the time of delivery.
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b) Processing services

The Company provides conversion / CMT services to local customers. These services are sold separately and the Company’s
contract with the customer for services constitute a single performance obligation.

Revenue from services is recognized at the point in time, generally at the time of dispatch. There are no terms giving rise to
variable consideration under the Company’s contracts with its customers.

ii) Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the
customer pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.

iii) Right of return assets

Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who
may exercise their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was
previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment.

iv) Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration befare the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment is received. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company accomplishes its
performance obligations under the contract.

v) Other income recognition
a) Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset.

b) Rent
Rent revenue is recognised on straight line basis aver the lease term.

c) Other revenue
Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.
2,20 Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of the
Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to the transactions with any of the Company's other components. An operating segment's operating results
are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess
its performance, and for which discrete finandal information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Chief Executive Officer include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Those income, expenses, assets, liabilities and other balances which cannot be
allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated.

The Company has three reportable business segments: Spinning (Producing different quality of yarn using natural and artificial
fibers), Weaving (Producing different quality of greige fabric using yarn) and Socks {(Manufacturing socks from vyarn, elastic and
other andillary materials).

Transactions among the business segments are recorded at arm's length prices using admissible valuation methods. Inter segment
sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

2,21  (Loss) / earnings per share

The Company presents Loss Per Share (LPS) aor Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. LPS / EPS is calculated by
dividing the (loss) / profit of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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2.22  Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company. Cantingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes certain.

2,23 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence ar non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the cantral
of the Company; or a present obligation that arises form past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embaodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation or when amount of this obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3. SPONSORS' LOANS

These loans are interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company.

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
4, SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FREEHOLD LAND
Balance as at 01 July 360,555 235,857
Surplus arised on revaluation of freehold land during the year - 124,698
Balance as at 30 June 360,555 360,555
5 LONG TERM FINANCING
From banking company - secured
Diminishing musharakah (Note 5.1) - 105,000
Unsecured
From sponsor director / shareholder (Note 5.2) - 56,543
- 161,543
Less: Current partion shown under current liabilities - 91,543
- 70,000

51 Whole of the outstanding amount of the diminishing musharakah was repaid on 03 December 2024 to Meezan Bank Limited. It
carried profit at the rate of 3 Month KIBOR plus 2% with floor of 5% and cap of 30% having repricing and payment on quarterly
basis. This loan was secured against equitable mortgage of Rupees 278.547 million aver property located at 1088, Jail Road,
Faisalabad owned by Mrs. Rubina Amjad, Director of the Company along with the personal guarantee of six directors of the
Company.

5.2 From sponsor director / shareholder

Opening balance 56,543 48,518
Add: Fair value adjustment (Note 29) 8,457 8,025

65,000 56,543
Less: Transferred to short term borrowings (Note 9.5) 65,000 -
Closing balance - 56,543

5.2.1 This represented unsecured interest free loans obtained from a sponsor director / shareholder of the Company. This loan was due
to be repaid in one bullet installment on 30 May 2025. However this amount has now been transferred to short term borrowings.
A portion of the loan of Rupees 65 million along with the sponsors' loan shown in Note 3 are subordinated to bank borrowings
amounting to Rupees 306.616 million collectively. Fair value of the loan was estimated at the present value of future cash flows
discounted at effective rate of 16.54% (2024: 16.54%) per annum.,

6. STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY
Actuarial valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2025. The detail of the actuarial valuation is as follows:

Reconciliation of the movements during the year in the staff retirement gratuity

Opening balance 16,549 120,777

Provision for the year (Note 6.2) 16,522 55,016

Retirement benefit due but not paid - (80,929)

Retirement benefit paid (12,607) (78,205)

Remeasurements (Note 6.3) (217) (110)

Closing balance 20,247 16,549
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
6.1 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation 16,549 120,777
Current service cost 33,005 49,724
Interest cost 1,614 6,657
Gains arising on plan settlement (18,097) (1,405)
Retirement benefit due but not paid - (80,929)
Retirement benefit paid (12,607) (78,205)
Remeasurements:
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions 167 290
Experience adjustments (384) (400)
20,247 16,549
6.2 Provision for the year
Current service cost 33,005 49,724
Gains arising on plan settlement (18,097) (1,405)
Interest cost 1,614 6,697
16,522 55,016
6.3 Remeasurements
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions 167 290
Experience adjustments (384) (400)
(217) (110)
2025 2024
6.4 Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate used for interest cost in profit or loss charge {per annum) 15.75% 16.25%
Discount rate used for year end obligation (per annum) 11.75% 14.75%
Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) 11.75% 14.75%
Average duration of the defined benefit obligation 2 2
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05
set back 1 year set back 1 year
Withdrawal rate Age based Age based
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

6.5 The estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 30 June 2026 is Rupees 18.398
million.

6.6 Expected benefit payments for the future years:

One year 1-2 years 2-4 years |Over 4 years

9,817 10,481 20,646 54,297
6.7 Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation:

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation as at reporting date to changes in the weighted principal assumption is:

2025 2024
Discount rate 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (419) (325)
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 441 342
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 522 409
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (504) (396)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice,
this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumption may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined
benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the gratuity liability
recognized within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year
except for certain changes as given in Note 6.4.
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6.8 Risk associated with the scheme
a) Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk)

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on
the final salary (which will dosely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary
increases.

b) Demaographic risks
Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is maore pronounced in schemes
where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal risk

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk
varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
7. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors (Note 7.1) 439,761 533,443
Accrued liabilities 57,559 220,374
Contract liabilities - unsecured (Note 23.2) 7,890 48,985
Income tax deducted at source 6,124 6,361
Sales tax payable 5,699 9,248
Workers' welfare fund 10,305 10,305
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable (Note 7.2) 21,383 21,383
Others 1,749 4,087
550,470 854,186
7.1 These include amounts due to following related parties:
Blue Moon Filling Station 10,290 10,290
Ideal Socks 2,949 3,329
13,239 13,619

7.2 This represents Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) which was levied through GIDC Act, 2015. Supreme Court of
Pakistan upheld this GIDC Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intra-vires.

8. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long term financing - 2,149
Short term borrowings 13,179 26,419
13,179 28,568

9. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Cash finances (Note 9.1 and 9.4) - 105,762
Running finances (Note 9.2 and 9.4) 182,353 198,427
Other short term finances (Note 9.3 and 9.4) 400,862 476,756

583,215 780,945

Others - unsecured
Other related parties (Note 9.5) 1,205,243 829,868

1,788,458 1,610,813

9.1 These form part of total credit facility of Rupees 462.943 million (2024: Rupees 1,200 million). Rates of mark-up range from
13.22% to 22.83% (2024: 23.10% to 24.91%) per annum during the year on balances outstanding.

9.2 These form part of total credit facility of Rupees 200 million (2024: Rupees 200 million). Rates of mark-up range from 13.08% to
23.99% (2024: 22.12% to 26.40%) per annum during the year on balances outstanding.

9.3 These form part of total credit facility of Rupees 540 million (2024: Rupees 1,214 million). Rates of mark-up range from 8.00%
to 25.69% (2024: 17.50% to 26.04%) per annum during the year on balances cutstanding.

9.4 These finances are secured against joint pari passu charge over present and future fixed and current assets, pledge of stocks and
lien an import / export documents. These are further secured by the personal guarantee of the directors of the Company.

9.5 These represent interest free loans from Chief Executive Officer, directors and sponsor of the Company to meet the Company's
working capital requirements. These also include an amount of Rupees 65 million (Note 5.2) which was transferred from long
term financing during the year.

| —
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10. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
a) Contingencies

i) The Company has challenged, before Lahore High Court, Lahore, the provisions of SRO 491(1)/2016 dated 30 June
2016 issued under section 8(1)(b) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby through amendment in the earlier SRO
1125(1)/2011 dated 31 December 2011, claim of input sales tax in respect of packing material has been disallowed. The
Company filed a Writ Petition No. 96551/2017 dated 03 November 2017 before Lahare High Court, Lahore. Consequently,
the Company has accounted for input sales tax amounting to Rupees 4.791 million (2024: Rupees 4.791 million) paid on
such items as receivable balance. Lahore High Court, Lahore through its order dated 25 June 2019 has dismissed the
petition filed by the Company. Being aggrieved by the order, an Intra Court Appeal (ICA) No. 1247 of 2020 dated 14
January 2020 has been filed by the Company in Lahore High Court, Lahore. The Company is confident of positive cutcome
of the appeal, therefore no provision has been recognized in these financial statements.

ii) The Company received show cause notice from Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue dated 16 December 2019 for
further tax not paid amounting to Rupees 11.957 million (2024: Rupees 11.957 million) on sale to unregistered persons
from 01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 along with default surcharge and penalty under section 34(1) and section 33 of Sales
Tax Act, 1990 respectively. Against the order, an appeal has been filed by the Company on 06 May 2020 before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) which is pending for decision. No provision has been made in these financial
statements as the management is hopeful for positive outcome.

iii) An appeal was filed in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 09 April 2018 against cost of supply of Re-Gasified Liquefied
Natural Gas (RLNG) by Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) amounting to Rupees 4.953 million (2024: Rupees
4.953 million). This appeal was allowed by Lahore High Court, Lahore on 13 December 2019 by asking Oil and Gas
Regulatory Autherity (OGRA) to conduct a public hearing to determine the level of cost of supply of RLNG. Keeping in view
the opinion of the legal counsel of the Company, the related provision is not made in these financial statements as there
are strong grounds that the decision of the proposed public hearing of OGRA will be decided in favour of the Company.

iv) Sindh High Court, Karachi made decision on 04 June 2021 about the levy of Sindh Infrastructure Cess, against which
the Company was contingently liable for Rupees 6.177 million (2024: Rupees 6.177 million). The guarantess were
submitted by the Company's Bank for the same amount. Against the decision, the Company lodged a constitution petition
No. 4841 / 2021 dated 13 August 2021, in Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). Thereafter, on 01 September 2021, SCP
allowed the petition, suspended the judgment of Sindh High Court, Karachi and leave to appeal was granted. However, the
case is not yet fixed for hearing by SCP. On advice of legal counsel, in view of possible favourable cutcome, no provision is
accounted for in these financial statements.

v) Faisalabad Electric Supply Company Limited (FESCO), being aggrieved of the decision made by Lahare High Court,
Lahore on 18 August 2022 against the fuel price adjustment for the month of July 2022 of Rupees 16.585 million, filed
CPLA 1231-L/2023 against the Company in Supreme Court of Pakistan on 19 May 2023. On 16 October 2023 Supreme
Court of Pakistan converted it into appeal and allowed it. However, on advice of legal counsel, no provision is made in
these financial statements in view of possible favourable outcome for the Company.

vi) Guarantees of Rupees 95.611 million (2024: Rupees 94.294 million) are given by the banks of the Company to
SNGPL against gas connections and to FESCO against electricity connections.

b) Commitments

i) Letters of credit for capital expenditure and other than capital expenditure are of Rupees Nil (2024: Rupees 36.566
millien).

ii) Commitments arising from short term lease to be recognised on a straight line basis as expense under the practical‘
expedient applied by the Company with respect to IFRS 16 are of Rupees 4.520 million (2024: Rupees 5.085 million)
which are to be paid within one year (2024: within one year).

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets (Note 11.1) 1,560,290 1,692,554
Capital work-in-progress (Note 11.2) 11,870 11,870
1,572,160 1,704,424
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11.1.5 Particulars of immovable properties (i.e. land and buildings) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Covered
Particulars Location Area of land area
Acres Sq. Ft.
Manufacturing facilities and vacant land ~ 32-KM Sheikhupura Road, Tehsil Jaranwala, District Faisalabad 22.544 392 967
Head office (Note 11.1.6) 1088, Jail Road, Faisalabad 0.250 24 728
Other office (Note 11.1.7) 1204, 12th Floor, Tricon Corporate Center, Jail Road, Lahore - 5273
11.1.6 This building is constructed and capitalized on the land which is in the name of a director of the Company.
11.1.7 The covered area at this location consists of building only because of multi-storey plaza.
11.2 Capital work-in-progress
Sta_nd-hy Intangible Total
equipment assets
At30 June 2023 - 8,395 8,395
Add: Additions during the year 9,356 - 9,356
Less: Transferred to operating fixed assets during the year (5,881) (5.881)
At30 June 2024 3,475 8,395 11,870
Movement during the year - - -
At30 June 2025 3,475 8,305 11,870
2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
12, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer softwares

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value 864 2,659
Less: Amortization (Note 26) B64 1,795
Closing net back value - 864

Gross carrying amount

Cost 8,116 8,116
Accumulated amortization (8,116) (7,252)
Closing net book value - 864
Amortization rate (per annum) 20% and 20% and
33.33% 33.33%
12,1 The computer softwares are fully amortized but still in use of the Company.
13. LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits (Note 13.1) 1,789 1,789
Margin against bank guarantee 7,000 -
Prepayments 768 929
9,557 2,718
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 19) 638 596
8,919 2,122
13.1 These mainly indude interest free security deposits placed with utility companies for the provision of utility connections.
| —|
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14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET
Taxable temporary difference
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization
Deductible temporary differences

Staff retirement gratuity

Unused tax losses, unabsorbed tax depreciation and amortization

Allowances for doubtful receivables

Unused tax credits against minimum tax and alternate corporate tax

Deferred income tax asset

Unrecognized deferred income tax asset (Note 14.2 and Note 14.3)

At the end of the year

IdealGroup

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

14.1 Movement in the deferred income tax asset / (liability) balance is as follows:

At the beginning of the year

(Less) / add:
-accelerated tax depreciation and amortization
-staff retirement gratuity
-unused tax losses

-provision for GIDC
-allowances for doubtful receivables

-unused tax credits against minimum tax and alternate corporate tax

-unrecognized deferred income tax asset

14.1.1 Charged to the statement of profit or loss:

Net movement of temporary differences (Note 14.1)

Remeasurement of staff retirement gratuity

(150,981) (162,372)
5,872 28,260
241,576 173,449
2,422 882
184,657 168,711
434,527 371,311
283,546 208,939
(283,546) (104,819)
- 104,120
(104,120) -
(11,391) 45,981
22,397 (3,751)
(68,127) (74,953)
- 4,341
(1,540) -
(15,946) (168,711)
178,727 52,973
104,120 (104,120)
- (104,120)
104,120 (104,120)
63 32
104,057 (104,152)

14.2 The Company has unused tax losses of Rupees 833.020 million which include unabsorbed tax depreciation of Rupees

309.973 million and tax losses of Rupees 523.047 million which will expire as follows:

Accounting year to which tax loss relates

Amount of tax loss

Accounting year in which tax
loss will expire

2025
2024
2023

RUPEES IN
THOUSAND

110,748
134,846
277,453

523,047

2031
2030
2029

Deferred income tax asset has been recognized against Rupees 142.687 million of unused tax losses, unabsorbed tax
depreciation and amortization. While deferred income tax asset is not recognized on the remaining amount of Rupees

98.889 million.

| —
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14.3 The Company has unused tax credits against minimum tax and alternative corporate tax available for carry forward under
Section 113 and 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 as detailed below. Deferred income tax asset is not recognized
against these tax credits.

Accounting
Accounting year to which the minimum tax / Nature Amount of tax year in wh_lch
alternative corporate tax relates tax credit
will expire
RUPEES IN
THOUSAND
2025 Minimum tax 44,750 2028
2024 Minimum tax 54,621 2027
2023 Minimum tax 59,725 2026
2022 Alternative corporate tax 3,948 2032
2021 Minimum tax 21,613 2026
184,657
2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
15. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 53,202 49,314

Spare parts 43,430 52,888

Loose tools 477 405

97,109 102,607

16. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials (Note 16.1 and Note 16.2) 126,579 266,905
Work-in-process 14,553 84,013
Finished goods 141,353 333,375

Waste 726 1,045
283,211 685,338

16.1 Raw materials include stock in transit of Rupees 24.510 million (2024: Rupeas 79.109 million).
16.2 These include stock of Rupees Nil (2024: Rupees 4.533 million) sent to outside parties for processing.
16.3  Stock in trade indludes stock amounting to Rupees 22.896 million (2024: Rupees Nil) valued at net realizable value.

16.4 The aggregate amount of write-down of inventories to net realizable value recognized as an expense during the year was
Rupees 5.856 million (2024: Rupees Nil).

17. TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Secured (against letters of credit) 8,770 31,697
Unsecured 185,024 198,826
193,794 230,523
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 17.3) 6,167 2,989
187,627 227,534

17.1  Trade debts in respect of foreign and local jurisdictions is given under:

Denmark 638 44,489
Germany 8,770 18,869
Netherlands 149 134
Portugal 47,661 12,827
United Kingdom 964 -
United States of America 34,300 33,150
Pakistan 95,145 118,065

187,627 227,534

| ——
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17.2 Revenue from the sale of goads is recognized at the time of delivery, while payment is generally due within 10 to 30
days in case of local sales and 30 to 120 days in case of export sales.

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

17.3  Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance 2,989 2,089
Add: Recognized during the year (Note 27) 3,178 -
Closing balance 6,167 2,989

18. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:

Employees - interest free

— Executives

against expenses 485 2,595

— Other employees
against expenses 2,173 1,462
against salary (Note 18.1) 1,317 579
3,490 2,041
3,975 4,636
Current portion of long term loans - 147
Advances to suppliers / contractors 13,991 12,244
Letters of credit - 701
17,966 17,728
Less; Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 18.2) 2,184 51
15,782 17,677

18.1 These represent interest free loans given to employees for meeting their personal expenditure. These are secured against
balance to the credit of employees in the staff retirement gratuity and are recoverable in equal monthly installments.

18.2  Provision for doubtful loans and advances

Opening balance 51 51
Add: Recognized during the year (Note 27) 2,133 -
Closing balance 2,184 51

19. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 517 40
Prepayments 959 303
Current portion of long term deposits and prepayments (Note 13) 638 596
2,114 939

|
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
20. ADVANCE INCOME TAX AND LEVY - NET

Advance income tax - net

Advance income tax 109,235 118,888

Less: Provision for taxation (40,269) (40,269)
68,966 78,619

Levy payable - net

Prepaid levy 18,659 14,134

Less: Levy payable (44,750) (69,463)]
(26,091) (55,329)
42 875 23,290

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Sales tax refundable / receivable 277,739 289,764
Export rebate 24,122 21,542
Others 4,688 4,200

306,549 315,506

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks:

On current accounts (Note 22.1) 14,225 73,412

On PLS saving accounts 26,016 21,636
40,241 95,048

Cash in hand 1,483 1,314
41,724 96,362

22.1  These include foreign currency accounts containing USD 2,028 and Euro 152 (2024: USD 1,959 and Euro Nil).

23. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Local sales (Note 23.1) 2,934,003 4,393,740
Export sales 645,963 1,158,249
Export rebate 3,562 7,474

3,583,528 5,559,463

23.1 Local sales

Yarn / socks 2,021,640 4,405,587
Waste 21,018 26,696
Sizing income - 1,849
Conversion income / CMT income / cloth sale 1,000,621 723,333
Lyocell { viscose / cotton 418,846 34,625

3,462,125 5,192,090
Less: Sales tax 528,122 798,350

2,934,003 4,393,740

23.2 The Company has recognized revenue of Rupees 38.080 million (2024: Rupees 31.059 million) from amounts induded in’
contract liabilities (Note 7) at the year end.

| —
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
24, COST OF SALES
Raw materials consumed (Note 24.1) 1,368,585 3,063,299
Cost of raw material sold 366,256 26,130
Salaries, wages and other benefits (Note 24.2) 383,449 423,914
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 149,800 193,946
Packing materials consumed 100,817 185,242
Sizing materials consumed 61,078 27,410
Qutside processing / conversion and other charges 11,241 54,709
Repair and maintenance 1,676 3,209
Fuel and power 680,010 1,008,284
Insurance 14,442 15,275
Rent, rates and taxes (Note 24.3) 6,780 6,930
Other factory overheads 937 897
Depreciation (Note 11.1.3) 94,573 102,174
3,239,644 5,111,419
Work-in-process
Opening stock 84,013 99,755
Closing stock (14,553) (84,013)
69,460 15,742
Cost of goods manufactured 3,309,104 5,127,161
Finished goods
Opening stock 334,420 558,752
Closing stock (142,079) (334,420)
192,341 224,332
3,501,445 5,351,493
24.1 Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 266,905 288,868
Add: Purchased during the year 1,228,259 3,041,336
1,495,164 3,330,204
Less: Closing stock (126,579) (266,905)
1,368,585 3,063,299

24.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits include staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees 8.023 million
(2024: Rupees 41.355 million).

24.3 These include rent in respect of short term leases amounting to Rupees 6.780 million (2024: Rupees 6.780
million).

25. DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits (Note 25.1) 14,086 15,521
Outward freight and handling 21,000 31,041
Commission to selling agents 37,476 61,127
Travelling and accommaodation 1,790 1,505
Postage and telephone 2,340 337
Others 2,218 3,056

78,910 112,587

25.1 Salaries and other benefits include staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees 1.261 million (2024
Rupees 2.123 million).

| —
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26. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits (Nate 26.1)
Directors' remuneration

Rent, rates and taxes

Legal and professional

Insurance

Travelling and conveyance
Vehicles’ running

Entertainment

Auditor's remuneration (Note 26.2)
Advertisement

Postage and telephone

Electricity, gas and water

Printing and stationery

Repair and maintenance

Fee and subscription

Miscellaneous

Amortization (Note 12)
Depreciation (Note 11.1.3)

2025

@
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2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

102,283 135,136
11,600 11,600
6,946 7,302
1,611 849
6,093 6,101
9,365 5,637
21,730 32,083
10,300 13,252
1,435 1,360
91 79
6,220 9,902
13,552 18,064
1,417 2,527
5,065 8,252
3,223 6,000
8,648 8,694
864 1,795
29,776 33,942
240,219 302,575

26.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees 7.238 million (2024: Rupees 11.538

million).
26.2 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee
Half yearly review
Certification and other services

27. OTHER EXPENSES

Donation (Note 27.1)

Trade debts written off

Allowance for expected credit loss (Note 17.3)

Net exchange loss

Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 18.2)

1,200 1,200
110 110
125 50
1,435 1,360
440 575
19 42
3,178 -
- 5,318
2,133 -

5,770 5,935

27.1 Whole of the donation was given to Faisalabad Women Chamber of Commerce and Industry where a director Mrs. Rubina

Amjad is Executive Member.

28. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on deposits with banks (Note 28.1)
Net exchange gain

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Rental income
Credit balances written back

2,648 3,232
701 -
3,349 3,232
1,760 553
22,891 18,355
68,175 13,617
92,826 32,525
96,175 35,757

28.1 Rate of profit on bank deposits as disclosed in Note 22 ranges from 5.72% to 16.00% (2024: 6.75% to 20.50%) per annum.

| —
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
29. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on:
Long term financing 8,994 29,901
Short term borrowings 102,893 130,346
Fair value adjustment of loans from spansor director / shareholder (Note 5.2) 8,457 8,025
Bank charges and commission 7,767 11,287
128,111 179,559
30. LEVY

Charge for the year:
Current (Note 30.1) 44,750 68,755
Prior year - 708
44,750 69,463

30.1 The provision for current levy represents minimum tax on turnover as per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Reconciliation of tax
expenses and product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is not given in view of unused tax losses of the
Company as given in Note 14.2 to these financial statements.

31. TAXATION
Deferred 104,057 (104,153)

32. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share which is based on:

2025 2024
Loss for the year (Rupees in thousand) (423,559) (322,240)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) 9 920 000 9920 000
Loss per share (Rupees) (42.70) (32.48)

2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation and levy (274,752) (356,929)
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation (Note 11.1.3) 124,349 136,116
Amortization (Note 12) 864 1,795
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 11.1.4) (1,760) (553)
Provision for staff retirement gratuity (Note 6.2) 16,522 55,016
Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 27) 3,178 -
Net exchange (gain) [ loss (999) 176
Finance cost (Note 29) 128,111 179,559
Credit balances written back (Note 28) (68,175) (13,617)
Pravision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 27) 2,133 -
Working capital changes (Note 33.1) 217,361 269,200
146,832 270,763

33.1 Working capital changes

Decrease / (increase) in current assets

- Stores, spare parts and loose tools 5,498 31,390
- Stock-in-trade 402,127 262,037
- Trade debts 37,733 139,901
- Loans and advances (238) 2,671
- Short term deposit and prepayments (1,175) (608)
- Other receivables 8,957 3,366
452 502 438,757
Decrease in trade and other payables (235,541) (169,557)
217,361 269,200
1
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33.2 Recondiliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

2025 2024
Long R .
Short term [[Unclaimed Long term| Short term || Unclaimed
term N - Total - - N L Total
) N borrowings | dividend financing | borrowings| dividend
financing
------------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) --------—-=- -=-------—----- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) ---—-------—--
Balance as at 01 July 161,543 1,610,813 2,599 1,774,955 188,518 1,439,323 2,801 1,630,642
Other changes - non cash
movement (56,543) 65,000 - 8,457 8,025 - - 8,025
Short term borrowings - net - 112,645 - 112,645 - 171,490 - 171,490
Repayment of long term finandng  (105,000) - - (105,000) (35,000) - - (35,000)
Dividend paid - - (3) 3) - - (202) (202)
Balance as at 30 June - 1,788,458 2,596 1,791,054 161,543 1,610,813 2,599 1,774,955

34. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration induding all benefits to Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives
of the Company is as follows:

[Chief Executive Offil:er‘ ‘ Director (Note 34.2) ‘ Executives ‘

[ 2025 [ 2024 | [ 2025 [ 2024 [ 2025 | 2024 |

------------------------------- RUPEES IN THOUSAND====s===sssssmmmann e nmmnanaan
Managerial remuneration 5,455 5,455 4,364 4,364 37,557 48,085

Allowances

Others 545 545 436 436 3,756 4,808
Staff retirement gratuity paid B _ _ _ 1,011 5,498
6,000 6,000 4,800 4,800 42,324 58,391
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 20 25

34.1 Chief Executive Officer, some directors and certain executives are provided with Company maintained vehides and are entitled to reimbursement of
travelling expenses and other utilities.

34.2 This represents remuneration paid to Mr. Omer Saeed, a Director of the Company.
34.3 During the year, an amount of Rupees 800,000 (2024: Rupees 800,000) was paid to eight directors (2024: eight directors) as meeting fee.

34.4 Apart from the meeting fee, no remuneration was paid to nan-executive directors of the Company.

2025 2024

35. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees as at 30 June (Note 35.1) 684 637
Average number of employees during the year 942 838

35.1 These represent the total number of employees employed by the Company at the year end including permanent employees and others who have not
become eligible to be permanent.

36. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated company / undertakings, other related parties and key management personnel. The Company in the normal
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been
specifically disdosed elsewhere in these financial statements is as follows:
2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Name Basis of relationship Nature of transactions

Associated company / undertakings:

Blue Moon Filling Station Director of the Company is the member  Fuel purchased - 4,341
of Board of Trustees

Wagas Spinning Mills (Private) Limited Common directorship Rental expense 4,500 4,500
Sales - 8,813
Ideal Socks Directors of the Company are the Rental expense 2,280 2,280

members of Board of Trustees

Other related parties

Directors and sponsors Members of board of directors, key Loans obtained from 310,375 217,515
management persannel and sponsor directors/sponsor-net

36.1 Detail of compensation to key management personnel comprising of Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives is disclosed in Note 34,

| —
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37. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
Spinning

100 % plant capacity converted to 20s count based on 3
shifts per day for 807 shifts (2024: 1 098 shifts)

Actual plant capacity converted to 20s count based on 3
shifts per day for 672 shifts (2024: 1 080 shifts)

Weaving

100 % plant capacity converted to 60 picks based on 3
shifts per day for 1 095 shifts {2024: 1 098 shifts)

Actual plant capacity converted to 60 picks based on 3
shifts per day for 933 shifts (2024: 715 shifts)

Socks

Capacity of such unit cannot be determined due to nature of its operations.

37.1 REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION

(Kgs.)

(Kgs.)

(Sq.Mtr.)

(Sq.Mtr.)

2025

9894 615

5524 932

27 458 309

14 392 097

IdealGroup

2024

17 836 890

11 154 492

28 879736

11 023 054

Production remained low during the year due to operational constraints faced in spinning segment. The
limited availability of resources and adjustments in processes contributed to reduced output in
production of weaving segment. Moreover periodical scheduled maintenance was also the factor for low

production of weaving segment.
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38.4 All non-current assets of the Company as at reporting date are located and operating in Pakistan.
38.5 Revenue is recognized at the point in time as per terms and conditions of underlying contracts with customers.
38.6 Revenue from major customers
The Campany's revenue is earned from a long mix of customers.
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
39.1 Finandial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of finandial risks namely market risk (currency risk, other price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. Such policies entail identifying, evaluating and addressing financial risks of the Company.

The Company's overall risk management procedures to minimise the potential adverse effects of these risks on the Company's
performance are as follows:

{a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and
payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to United
States Dollar (USD) and Eurc. Currently the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to bank balances
and the amounts receivable from the foreign entities. The Company's exposure to currency risk was as follows:

2025 2024
Trade debts - USD 157,520 346,776
Cash at banks - USD 2,028 1,959
159,548 348,735
Trade debts - Euro 143,898 43,511
Cash at banks - Euro 152 -
144,050 43,511
Following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
Rupees per US Dollar
Average rate 280.95 282.45
Reporting date rate 283.60 278.30
Rupees per Euro
Average rate 315.07 305.80
Reporting date rate 332.25 297.88

Sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD and Euro with all
other variables held constant, the impact on loss after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 4.655 million
(2024: Rupees 5.446 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign
exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been
calculated on a symmetric basis. In management's opinion the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent
currency risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

(ii) Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from short term borrowings and bank balances in saving accounts. Financial
instruments at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate
expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

| —
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At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Fixed rate instruments
Finandal liabilities
Short term borrowings 182,000 132,000
Floating rate instruments
Financdial assets
Bank balances - saving accounts 26,016 21,636
Finandal liabilities
Long term financing - 105,000
Short term borrowings 401,215 648,945

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate finandial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, loss after
taxation for the year would have been Rupees 3.752 million (2024: Rupees 7.323 million) higher / lower, mainly as a
result of higher / lower interest expense / income on floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared
assuming the amounts of financial instruments outstanding at reporting date were outstanding for the whole year.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a finandal loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Loans and advances 1,317 726
Deposits 9,306 1,829
Trade debts 187,627 227,534
Other receivables 4,688 4,200
Bank balances 40,241 95,048

243,179 329,337

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate.

The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures limiting transactions with the specdific
counterparties and continually assessing the credit worthiness of the counterparties.

The Company's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the policies and guidelines approved by the
management. Credit risk arises from trade debts, bank balances, other receivables, loans, advances and deposits.

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into account the
customer’s finandal position, past experience and other factors. Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the senior
management and where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties. Export sales are usually
secured through letters of credit. The management has set a maximum credit period limit for each type of customers in
order to reduce the credit risk.

| ——
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The Company's exposure to credit risk related to trade debts due from other than the related party is as follows:

GROSS AMOUNT EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS
2025 2024 2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Not past due 116,017 207,149 - -

Upto 1 month 43,092 10,053 - -

1 to 6 months 24,012 8,956 - -

6 months to 1 year 4,506 1,376 - -
More than 1 year 6,167 2,989 6,167 2,989
193,794 230,523 6,167 2,989

The management believes that all unimpaired amounts are collectable in full, based on historical payment behaviour and
extensive analysis of consumer credit risk.

Rating 2025 2024
Short Long
term term Agency (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Banks
Conventional Accounts
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 1,724 1,693
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 418 1,186
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 206 80
United Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 1 28
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 692 22
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 17 356
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 101 177
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 160 167
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 25,897 21,408
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 20 7
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA+ PACRA 7,681 24,634
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 15 56

36,932 49,823
Shariah Compliant Accounts
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited Al AA- VIS 1,178 1,169
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 43 203
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 2,086 43,849
BankIslami Pakistan Limited Al AA- PACRA 2 4

3,309 45,225
40,241 95,048

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to
their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-perfarmance by these counterparties on their obligations
to the Company. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with finandial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2025, the Company had Rupees 619.728 million (2024: Rupees 1,853.055
million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 41.724 million (2024: Rupees 96,362 million) cash
and bank balances. Moreover, the Company has Rupees 208.134 million (2024: Rupees 450.440 million) unfunded
borrowing limits out of which Rupees 101.788 million (2024: Rupees 137.037 million) were utilized. Management believes
the liquidity risk to be low. Followings are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are undiscounted cash flows.

| —
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2025:

Carrying Contractual 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years More than 2
Amount cash flows years

RUPEES INTHOUSAND

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 460,859 460,859 460,859 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 2,556 2,596 2,556
Accrued mark-up 13,179 13,179 13,179 - - -
Short term borrowings 1,788,458 1,819,700 1,819,700 - - -
2,265,092 2,296,334 2,296,334 - - -
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2024:
Carrying Contractual 6 months ar less 6-12 manths 1-2 years Mare than 2
Amount cash flows years

RUPEES INTHOUSAND

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing 161,543 207,948 28,690 91,744 47,649 39,865
Trade and ather payables 779,136 779,136 779,136 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 2,599 2,599 2,599 - - -
Accrued mark-up 28,568 28,568 28,568 - - -
Short term borrawings 1,610,813 1,693,185 1,546,231 146,554 - -

2,582,659 2,711,436 2,385,224 238,698 47,649 39,865

The contractual cash flows relating to the ahove financial liabilities have heen determined on the basis of interest / mark-up / profit rates effective as at 30 June. The
rates of interest / profit / mark-up have been disclosed in Note 9 to these finandal statements.

39.2 Financial instruments by categories
2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND})
At amortized cost

Assets as per statement of financial position

Loans and advances 1,317 726
Deposits 9,306 1,829
Trade debts 187,627 227,534
Other receivables 4,688 4,200
Cash and bank balances 41,724 96,362
244,662 330,651

Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Long term financing - 161,543
Trade and other payables 460,859 779,136
Unclaimed dividend 2,556 2,599
Accrued mark-up 13,179 28,568
Short term borrowings 1,788,458 1,610,813
2,265,092 2,582,659

39.3 Reconciliation of financial assets and financial liabilities to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

2025 2024
Total as per
- N Other than Total as per Financial Other “.12"1 statement of
Financial assets | .. . statement of financial .
financial assets X N o assets financial
financial position assets -
position
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Assets as per statement of financial position
Long term deposits and prepayments 8,789 130 8,919 1,789 333 2,122
Trade debts 187,627 - 187,627 227,534 - 227,534
Loans and advances 1,317 14,465 15,782 726 16,951 17,677
Short term deposits and prepayments 517 1,597 2,114 40 899 939
Other receivables 4,688 301,861 306,549 4,200 311,306 315,506
Cash and bank balances 41,724 - 41,724 96,362 - 96,362
244,662 318,053 562,715 330,651 329,489 660,140
2025 2024
Total as per
Financial Other than Total as per Financial Other t'.m" statement of
TN, ) T statement of . financial h
liabilities financial liabilities| .. : o liabilities gt financial
financial position liabilities -
position
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Long term financing - - - 161,543 - 161,543
Trade and other payables 460,859 89,611 550,470 779,136 75,050 854,186
Unclaimed dividend 2,556 - 2,556 2,599 - 2,599
Accrued mark-up 13,179 - 13,179 28,568 - 28,568
Short term horrawings 1,788,458 - 1,788,458 1,610,813 - 1,610,813
2,265,092 89,611 2,354,703 2,582,659 75,050 2,657,709
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39.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsetting as there are no enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements.

39.5 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company
monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratic. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed.
Borrowings represent short term borrowings (except subordinated loans) obtained by the Company as referred to in Note 9. Equity
represents 'total equity' as shown in the statement of financial position and the portion of loan from sponsor director / shareholder which
is subordinated to bank barrowings as referred in Note 5.2.1. Total capital employed indudes 'total equity’ plus 'borrowings'. The
Company's strategy remained unchanged from last year.

2025 2024
Barrowings (Rupees in thousand) 1,723,642 1,707,540
Total equity (Rupees in thousand) 247,936 671,341
Total capital employed (Rupees in thousand) 1,971,578 2,378,881
Gearing ratio (Percentage) 87.42 71.78

The increase in gearing ratio resulted primarily from loss after taxation of the Company.

40. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or either pay or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying value and the fair value
estimates. The Company classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements. Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets and financial liabilides are considered to
be the same as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their
carrying amounts. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets and finandial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair
value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their carrying amounts.

Level 1: Quoted market price in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is induded in level 2.
Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant un-observable inputs.
However as at reporting date, the Company has no such type of financil instruments which are required to be grouped into these levek.

41. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

(i) Fair value hierarchy
Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are recognized and measured at fair

value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Company has classified its non-financial assets into the following three levels.

| Level 1 | Level 2 [ Level 3 | Total |

At 30 June 2025
Freshold land - 396,770 - 396,770

At 30 June 2024
Freehold land - 396,770 - 396,770

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. Further, there was no transfer in
and out of level 3 measurements.

| —
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(if) Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values

The Company abtains independent valuation for its freehold land (cdlassified as property, plant and equipment) at least after every three
years. The management updates the assessment of the fair value of freehold land, taking into account the maost recent independent
valuation. The management determines freehold land's value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair
value of freehold land is current prices in an active market for similar lands.

Valuation processes

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuer to determine the fair value of the Company’s freehold land at least after
every three years. The latest valuation of freehold land was performed by Messrs Mughal Associates Evaluators and Consulting Engineers
as at 24 June 2024.

Changes in fair values are analyzed during the valuation discussion between the management and the valuers. As part of this discussion
the team presents a report that explains the reason for the fair value movements.

42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 11 July 2025, Board of Directors of the Campany has unanimously dedded to dispose
of the Company's major portion of plant and machinery and stand-by equipment of its spinning segment. This dedsion was later
approved by the members of the Company in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 11 August 2025 in which Chief Executive Officer
and certain directors were authorized to carry out the transactions and perform ather formalities, However, this event has been
considered as nan-adjusting event under IAS 10 'Events After the Reparting Period' and has not been recognized in these financial
statements

43. DISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPANY NOT ENGAGED IN SHARIAH NON-PERMISSIBLE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
AS ITS CORE ACTIVITIES

o [ 2025 [ 2024
Description Note |~ RUPEES INTHOUSAND)
Financing (long-term and short-term) obtained as per Islamic mode
Long term financing - 161,543
Short term borrowings Q 1,205,243 829,868
Interest or mark-up accrued on any conventional loan or advance
Short term borrowings 29 102,893 130,346
Shariah-compliant bank deposits and bank balances
Bank balances 39.1(b) 3,309 45,225
Revenue earned from shariah compliant business segment 23 3,583,528 5,559,463
Exchange gain earned from actual currency - net 28 701 -
Profit earned from Shariah-compliant bank deposits and bank balances 28 13 26
Profit paid on Islamic mode of financing 29 8,994 30,765
Total interest earned on any conventional loan or advance 28 2,635 3,206
Source and detailed breakup of other income, including breakup of other
or miscellaneous portions of other income into Shariah-compliant and
non-compliant income
Shariah-compliant
Net exchange gain 28 701 -
Rental income 28 22,891 18,355
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 28 1,760 553
Prafit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances 28 13 26
Credit balances written back 28 68,175 13,617
Non-compliant
Profit earned from non-compliant bank deposits / bank balances 28 2,635 3,206

There were no liquidity damages or late payments during the year. Moreover, there were no investments by the Company. The
relationship with all shariah compliant banks for the current year is related to bank accounts as given in Note 39.1(b).

| —
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AGJAD AEED OMER SAEED MUHAMMAD KASHIF ZAHUR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Gender pay gap statement under Circular No 10 dated 17 April 2024 .

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30-06-2025

(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap  : Nil

(i) Median Gender Pay Gap : Nil

(iii) Any other data . Nil
OMER SAEED
DIRECTOR
30 September 2025
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(Section 227(2)(f))

THE COMPANIES ACT , 2017

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

IdealGroup

FORM - 20 |

1.1 Name of the Company|

IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED |

2.1 Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholdersl

30-06-2025 |

Shareholdings
2.2 No, of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

535 1 100 43304
613 101 500 266715
71 501 1000 65452
85 1001 5000 222033
15 5001 10000 125595
4 10001 15000 48138

1 20001 25000 21174

1 25001 30000 26718
2 40001 45000 81000

1 45001 50000 47599
1 55001 60000 56500
1 60001 65000 60176
1 170001 175000 175000
1 210001 215000 214274

1 225001 230000 227000
1 535001 540000 535726
1 625001 630000 628396
1 880001 885000 883000
1 890001 895000 890726
1 920001 925000 922300
2 930001 935000 1865876
1 965001 970000 968300
1 1540001 1545000 1544998
1,342 9,920,000
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Categories of Shareholding
As at June 30,2025

Categories of Shareholding Numbers Shares held| Percentage (%)
Associated companies,Undertakings and Related Parties
NIT and ICP 3 1,000 0.01
Directors,Chief Executive & theirs
ispouse and Adult Children
Mr.Muhammad Saeed Sheikh ( Chairman ) 1 5,000 0.05
Mr.Amjad Saeed (Chief Executive) 2 2,080,724 20.98
Mrs.Rubina Amjad ( Director ) 2 1,105,000 11.14
Mr.Umar Saeed ( Director ) 2 1,110,000 11.19
Mr.Khizar Saeed ( Director ) 2 1,857,300 18.72
Mr.Ahsan Saeed ( Director ) 2 1,105,876 11.15
Mr.Muhammad Azhar (Independent Director) 1 500 0.01
IMr Rizwan-ul-Hassan (Independent Director) 1 100 0.00
Executives
Public Sector Companies and Corporations
Banks,Development Finance Institutions, 1 369 0.00
Non - Banking Finance Institutions,
Uont Stock Companies 5 2,400 0.02
Insurance Companies,Modaraba and Mutual Funds 1 628,396 6.33
Individuals 1317 1,961,047 19.77
Others 2 62,288 0.63
Total 1342 9,920,000 100.00
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE COMPANY
Name of Shareholder No of Sharrs held Percentage
Amjad Saeed 2,080,724 20.98
Rubina Amjad 1,105,000 11.14
Umar Saeed 1,110,000 11.19
Khizar Saeed 1,857,300 18.72
Ahsan Saeed 1,105,876 11.15
Kanwal Saeed 1,024,800 10.33
ICDC-TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 628,396 6.33
Statement showing shares bought and sold by directors, CEO,CFO,
Company secretary and the minor family members
form 01 July 2024 to 30 June 2025

S.NO Name Designation Shares bough‘ Shares sold

1 Mr.Mohammad Saeed Sheikh Chairman - -

2 Mr.Amjad Saeed Chief Executive - -

3 Mrs.Rubina Amjad Director - -

4 Mr.Omer Saeed Director - -

5 Mr.Khizer Saeed Director - -

6 Mr.Ahsan Saeed Director - -

7 Mr.Muhammad Azhar Independent Director - -

8 Mr.Rizwan-ul-Hassan independent Director - -

9 Muhammad Kashif Zahur Chief Financial Officel - -

10 Mr.Muhammad Nadeem Company Secretary - -

| —
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M/S F.D.Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt) Ltd.,

1705,17th Floor Saima Trade Tower-A
I.I.Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000

Dear Sir

The Share Registrar Ideal Spinning Mills Ltd
Request for E-Transmission of Annual Report

Pursuant to S.R.0.787(1)/2014 dated September 08,2014 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP),kindly note requisite information for electronic transmission of annual
balance sheet and profit and loss account, auditor’s report and directors report etc. ( Audited Financial
Statements) along with notice of annual general meeting (Notice) {collectively referred to as ‘Annual
Report’} of Ideal Spinning Mills Ltd (ISM).The email address provided hereunder may please be recorded
in the members’ register of the Company being maintained under Section 473 of the Companies Act
2017.

| Particulars

Name of shareholder

Folio No./ CDC ID No.

CNIC No.

Passport No.(for Foreign shareholder
E-mail address

Land line Telephone No.

Cell No.

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and | hereby agree and give my consent for
future transmission of the Company’s Annual Report via email address provided above.

It is further stated that being the shareholder of Company, it my responsibility to communicate any
change in the registered email address in a timely manner.

Yours Truly,

Shareholder’s Signature
Complete Address

Copy to
The Company Secretary

Ideal Spinning Mills Ltd

404/05, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hasan Road
Karachi
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THE MANAGER DATE:
F.D.REGISTRAR SERVICES(SMC-PVT) LTD

OFFICE#.1705, 17TH FLOOR, TRADE TOWER

A-1,CHUNDRIGAR ROAD KARACHI

KARACHI-74000

TEL:92-21-32271905-6

MANDATORY PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

Dear Sir,

I hereby communicate to receive my future dividend directly in my bank account as detailed below

A.  Shareholder’s Detail
Name of Company

Name of shareholder

Folio No. /CDC Participant ID Afc No.
CNIC No.

Passport No.

(in case of foreign shareholder)

Land Line Phone Number
Cell Number
E-mail address of shareholder

B. Shareholder’'s Bank Detail

Title of bank account

Bank Account (IBAN 24-DIGITS starting with PK)
Bank Name

Bank's Branch Name
Branch's complete address

Itis stated that the above-mentioned information is correct, that | will intimate the changes in the
above-mentioned information to the above addresses as soon as these occur.

Signature of shareholder

—ﬁ—
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FORM OF PROXY
37" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

IWe S/o/D/o/W/o
of beirg a member
of IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED and holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share Register
Folio No. and/or CDC Participant ID No. and Account/ Sub-account
No do hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss

Folio No./CDC No. of failing him/her .
Mr./Mrs./Miss Folio No./CDC No. of

as my/our proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at Annual General

Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2025 at 10.15 a.m at 404 -405, 4™ Floor
Business Centre Mumtaz Hassan Road Karachi and at any adjournment thereof in the same manner
as l/we myself/fourselves would vote if personally present at such meeting.

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy -
Folio / CDC A/C NO. ive Rupees
Revenue Stamp
Signed this day of 2025
WITNESS:
1 Signature 2. Signature

Name Name
Address Address
CNIC No. CNIC No.
or Passport No.-—----—-—--—--—-—-- or Passport No.

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy in writing to attend the
meeting and vote on member’s behalf.

2. If a member is unable to attend the meeting. He/She may complete and sign this form and send it
to the Company's Share Registrar M/s. F.D. Registrar Service (PVT) Limited 1705 17" Floor
Saima Trade Tower A, |.l. Chundrigar Road Karachi so as to reach not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

3. For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities; in addition to the above the following

Requirements have to be met:

(a) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers be stated on the form.

(b) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
provided with the proxy form.

© The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting. In
case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

| —
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